
Page 1 of 14 

 

 
 

                                 

GREENHEAD COLLEGE CORPORATION 

Minutes of the Audit & Risk Committee 
Monday 17 March 2025, 4.30pm 

Held in G17, Cooksey Building,  Greenhead College 

Governors present: 
Alison Jones (left 18.31); Chris Kneale; Ed Wynn (Chair); 
Michaela Boyrslawskyj; Mohammed Usman (via Teams – from 
16.42); Sally Watts 

In attendance 

Mike Benson (external audit); Paul Goddard (internal audit) (via 
Teams); Emma Gipson (RSM UK) (via Teams, left 17.30); James 
Reevell (VP – Quality of Education) (left 17.13); Lauren Metcalfe 
(DoFF); Sarah Walters (DoEO); Sharon Roper (Clerk)  

Apologies: Mo Bunter; Stuart Irving 

Governor attendance: 86% attendance 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
1. Welcome, 
Apologies 
 

 
EWY welcomed participants, especially MBJ and SWS, two 
new A&R committee members, Emma Gipson from RSM 
UK via Teams and JRL, Vice Principal Quality of Education. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
2. Declarations 
 

 
No declarations of pecuniary/ prejudicial interest. 

 

 
3. Minutes 11/11/24 
 

 
3.1 Minutes 11/11/24, previously circulated, approved by 
Committee, signed off by Chair, returned to Clerk for filing. 
 
3.2 Matters Arising Action Log: 
1. (13/11/24 Min 4.6, Action 2) Risk registers are 
communicated to staff in college, and they are aware of 
their responsibilities – SWA asked for the due date to be 
extended to 16/6/25 and she will update staff in a future 
staff meeting.   
2. (13/5/24 Min 5.1.11 Action 4) KPI data – the KPI 
monitoring data will be shared by SWA after each half-term, 
and Clerk will circulate to all governors.  
3. (23/9/24 Min 3.2.2.4, Action 8) Student, parents and 
carers contact details being stored in paper format in case 
of a Ransomware attack. The format has been agreed by 
CLT and PDI is actioning this. A&R members agreed this 
action can be closed.  
4. (23/9/24 Min 5.5, Action 9) Risk training that A&R 
members have been asked to undertake – three governors 
have completed it. MBJ confirmed that she found it useful, 

 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
SWA/Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 14 

EWY said that it takes about 20 minutes and encouraged 
A&R members to complete it, the due date was extended to 
16/6/25. 
5. (23/9/24 Min 7.7, Action 16) Three estates risks (E1, E3 
& E5) and one HR risk on the College Risk Register which 
are all outside the risk appetite – A&R members agreed the 
action can be closed.  
6. (23/9/24 Min 7.8, Action 17) – EWY asked about the risk 
rating around a new HR system and asked if there is 
sufficient control in respect of this. EWY asked for a due 
date for this action. SWA said the new system will include a 
finance system. Decisions are ongoing about when a new 
payroll system will be introduced, the college might not want 
to do this mid-way through a tax year. EWY noted that a 
due date cannot be set yet. SWA will update A&R on 
16/6/25.  
7. (23/9/24 Min 9.3.7, Action 19) EWY’s question about  
governor oversight, the details of the new HR/Finance 
software will be reported to F&E committee who look at the 
procurement pipeline. A&R members agreed the action can 
be closed.   
8. (23/9/24 Min 9.4.7, Action 22) EWY asked that LME 
looks at the long-term viability of continuing with payroll in-
house – EWY confirmed he is comfortable with this action 
not having a due date and the reason is detailed in Minute 
3.2.6 (above).  
9. (23/9/24 Min 9.4.5, Action 23) Risk Management audit 
report added value points – A&R members agreed the 
action can be closed.  
10. (11/11/24 Min 4.6, Action 27) EWY expects the new 
strategic and operational plans to have further detail around 
AI. A&R members agreed the action can be closed 
because this is covered on the agenda today (item 4).  
 
A&R members approved the following Action Log numbers 
for closure: 
1-4-6-8-11-12-13-14-16-19-23-24-25-26-27-28-29-30-31 
 
3.3 Audit Actions, previously circulated. 
EWY said introducing an audit recommendation tracker was 
an action from the External Governance Review.  
The rolling log is populated by the Clerk, but the ongoing 
maintenance of the actions rests with the action owners.  
EWY thanked the Clerk for setting up the tracker. 
Some of the filters in the report need adjusting – EWY will 
look at this with the Clerk and another copy will be issued to 
A&R members.  
The purpose of the report is for A&R overview. 
AJO asked for the percentage of actions completed and 
actions outstanding to be added into the tracker.   
 
 

 
A&R govs/ 
Clerk 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EWY/Clerk 
 
 
Clerk 



Page 3 of 14 

 
4. AI Position 

Statement 

 
 

 
JRL summarised the AI position statement, previously 
circulated. 
 
1. EWY said that policies on today’s agenda have been 
updated to reflect AI, a new AI risk has been added to the 
risk register and the first discussion about AI was held at 
A&R on 11/11/24.   
2. JRL said that AI technology is continuing to evolve, and 
he does not feel that a static AI policy is appropriate.  
JRL said that existing policies are being updated and gave 
an example of the Plagiarism Policy which has been 
updated with the implications of AI.  
3. CLT have identified opportunities and risk around AI for 
students and staff. Opportunities include data production 
and risks include managing age restrictions for students.   
4. The AI position statement confirms where the college 
currently sits, the direction it will take and the associated 
opportunities and risks.  
5. EWY likes that the Position Statement allows GC to 
change and adapt quickly and is pleased that GC is 
embracing AI and acknowledging the risks. 
6. There is ongoing work with other education institutions to 
learn from their experiences.  
7. EWY asked about managing plagiarism and noted that 
GC’s position is clear in the statement.   
JRL based GC’s managing plagiarism on sector 
discussions, and he attended events hosted by Google.  
The consistent theme was around inconsistency, language 
bias, and that tools used are not always reliable.  
JRL was concerned that high stakes judgments could be 
based on tools that can be unreliable.  
The College context on plagiarism has always relied on 
knowing the student and how they work.  
Extended projects are an example where plagiarism 
requires management. Communications to students include 
exam board expectations, and the importance of students 
signing off the work as their own.  
8. The AI position statement will be flexible and moveable.     
9. AJO agreed that the ‘Turn It In’ tool is not perfect, but it 
can be used in a triangulation sense.  
She shared the experience from her workplace that AI is 
used when teaching students. Some subjects set 
assessments asking for an AI generated answer which the 
students are asked to critique. Staff are tasked with setting 
assessments that are less susceptible to AI misuse.  
AJO said that data generated by ChatGPT is subject to 
Freedom of Information requests.  
10. MBJ said that ‘Turn It In’ is flawed but it is objective and 
can be used as an indicator to prompt further engagement 
with the student.  
11. JRL said that he will add digital equity into the statement 
in terms of premium tools that can be used. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JRL 
 



Page 4 of 14 

12. EWY said that university students are aware that 
universities use software to pick up AI misuse and this 
works as a deterrent to them.  
EWY asked for a watching brief on the types of deterrents 
that can be used.  
13. AJO suggested student communications around the 
ethical use of AI and what it can be used for.   
14. JRL said that AI will begin to have an impact on internal 
assessments at GC. 
15. EWY asked about the opportunities of using AI listed in 
the position statement. JRL has started looking into these 
and gave an example of using Chatbot on specification 
content of courses to develop revision tools.  
16. AI can help with back-office functions and improve the 
use of statistics and data, although care will be needed 
around data protection.  
17. Staff and students will be asked what they want and 
what they currently use. JRL is looking at the Digital 
Strategy; staff will be given devices to use and will be 
upskilled. 
18. EWY asked how AI and digital strategy will be governed 
and how the college will learn from its usage - Digital 
Champions will be appointed to support the strategies.  
19. EWY said an ISO Standard accreditation is available 
which helps implement AI. EWY asked that the intention of 
working towards these standards is added to the position 
statement.  
20. EWY said the specific age restriction risks of AI are 
managed by controls detailed in the position statement to 
prevent access and most of the other risks are being 
managed by policies.  
21. EWY asked A&R members if they are comfortable with 
the risks and controls in place, he gave an example of 
personal or confidential information being sent to a chatbot 
and currently there is no way to monitor this and the 
importance of GC controlling what it can.  
AJO suggested training around data breaches, emerging 
risks, the use of personal data in AI and communication 
around acceptable use 
MBJ suggested looking at SharePoint migration and using 
AI to monitor personal data used.  
MBJ used an example of trialling Co-Pilot with a view to 
launching it as the preferred AI tool to use. JRL said this 
would be an ideal solution for GC.  
22. EWY asked PGO for his perspective around AI, PGO 
said today’s discussion was the best he has heard in an 
Audit meeting. PGO said how AI will be governed is 
important, members should be giving direction and having 
regular touchpoints. When looking at the risk appetite for AI 
there should be awareness that the technology is new and 
changing and the college needs to be in a safe 
environment.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
JRL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JRL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JRL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 14 

23. EWY summarised that the position statement has some 
review comments to work through, and the A&R committee 
have asked for some amendments to be made.  
JRL will make the alterations, and the document will be 
shared for information with the A&R committee members.  
JRL is happy for further feedback of the AI Position 
Statement. 
EWY asked that the AI position statement is also sent to 
Q&S committee.  
MBE said that Q&S should be the lead committee for AI 
with A&R oversight including policies that reflect AI. 
EWY asked for it to be covered at A&R committee because 
it is an emerging risk and agreed that Q&S should have 
oversight from now on.  
24. SWA said from a risk management perspective she has 
assurance due to regular reviews in the risk register and the 
evolving AI position statement. SWA and JRL are working 
together on AI and digital strategies.    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk for 
agenda 

 
5. Bursary Audit  
 

 
Emma Gipson from RSM who conducted the Bursary Audit 
summarised the findings, paper previously circulated. 
 
1. LME said the Bursary audit looked at the previous 
academic year and the money that has been handed out to 
eligible students from ESFA bursary funding.  
LME had already identified, addressed and actioned most 
of the findings for the current academic year prior to the 
October audit.  
2. Emma Gipson confirmed the college was selected for a 
Bursary and free meals in FE review.  
3. The executive summary confirms an Unsatisfactory 
conclusion with funding errors over £95,000. 
4. Three key areas were identified:  

• Learners were receiving cash payments of £2 per 
day extra hardship to top up their free meals. This 
resulted in an error of £66,000.  

• Learners living within 1.5 miles of college were 
receiving cash payments for coats, shoes and 
transport in bad weather. ESFA are clear that they 
do not like flat rate payments. These were deemed 
ineligible payments. 

• Cash payments were made to learners who were on 
study leave, these were ineligible payments.  

5. Emma confirmed that GC had improved Bursary 
processes before the audit started.  
6. Emma thinks GC was selected for an audit because a 
wholesale review of bursary policies was undertaken, and 
GC’s Bursary Policy did not comply with the funding rules.   
7. The Unsatisfactory conclusion means that the funding 
errors were greater than 5% of the sample. There is a 
greater risk of a further audit next year.  
8. Annex B of the report identifies funding and non-funding 
management actions that are required. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 14 

These include: 

• A non-funding error was identified in the Bursary 
audit and the Funding Assurance Review, which was 
the need to confirm the eligibility of students.  

• One learner had moved, and student changes need 
to be checked during the year.  

• The Bursary Policy was out of date; this must be 
reviewed and updated annually to ensure 
compliance with funding rules.   

9. MBE asked why the ineligible payments were not picked 
up by the college last year – LME could not answer this 
because she was not in post at the time.  
When LME started her role, she looked at Bursary and 
reviewed the guidance and made changes for the next 
academic year.  
When she picked up the errors it was summer and was too 
late to change anything for the academic year 2023/24.  
LME did not update the Bursary Policy because the Bursary 
Audit notification had arrived, and she wanted to do a 
thorough update of the policy reflecting recommendations 
and best practice from the audit. 
From now on when Funding updates are released LME will 
undertake a comparison and make necessary updates.  
MBE noted the root cause is now understood by the 
Finance team and fixes have been made.  
MBE said the college needs to understand funding rules 
and ensure compliance in future.  
10. Emma gave context that in her experience of Bursary 
audits the error rates are high in relation to the amounts of 
funding audited. ESFA are aware of this through their own 
reviews.  
Emma feels the errors are not deliberate and have the 
learners’ interests in mind and Bursary funding rules are not 
clear.  
11. AJO said she’s assured by the remedial actions that 
have been made. 
12. LME took the opportunity during the audit to ask 
numerous questions; this was very useful and gave her 
further ideas to implement. GC will move to stopping cash 
payments in future.   
13. EWY asked for an error to be corrected on the report at 
the top of page 5, period August 2024 to July 2024 should 
be changed to August 2023 to July 2024.  
14. EWY asked how other institutions have crossed the 
evidence threshold in relation to cash payments - LME said 
where cash must be paid relevant monthly spot checks on a 
full sample are required. LME said that travel cards will be 
introduced.    
Emma said if cash is paid, the learner must provide 
receipts. Retrospective evidence can be obtained of the 
cost of travel from the travel companies websites.   
ESFA do not like cash payments.  
15. MBE asked if most of the clawbacks would not have 
been made if better checks and receipts were held. Emma 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Emma 
Gipson 



Page 7 of 14 

confirmed that £66,000 of clawbacks related to cash 
payments that were an extra top up.    
Funding rules allow a top up of the daily free meals 
allowance, but this shouldn’t be paid in cash because there 
is no evidence of how they spent the money. It should be 
paid to a catering card and removed at the end of the day if 
unspent. EWY asked if this is now fixed – it is, the money is 
now paid onto catering cards.  
MBE asked if the payments were against the rules – they 
weren’t but there was no evidence of where the cash was 
spent.  
EWY thanked Emma for presenting the report, giving 
context to it and the reassurance provided to the A&R 
committee members. 

 
6. ESFA Funding 
Assurance Review 
 

 
ESFA Funding Assurance Review, previously circulated. 
 
The overall conclusion was ‘satisfactory’ with £0 funding 
errors. 
 
MBE noted that the larger funding audit was a satisfactory 
result. 
LME said there were three recommendations. PDI, Director 
of MIS and IT may be able to implement, they were not 
crucial to the audit and there were no clawbacks. 
 
A&R committee noted the Funding Assurance Review.  

 
 
 

 
7. Risk Registers & 
summary of key 
risks/KPI  

 
Risk Register Update, College Risk register and Hirst Risk 
Register, and Risk Appetite Review Planning, all previously 
circulated. 
 
7.1 Risk Registers update: 
1. (E11 Breakdown of catering relationship with catering 
supplier) SWA said this is a new risk since the last A&R 
meeting.  
7.1.1 – 7.1.4 was a confidential discussion. 
4. (E5 Cyber Risk) EWY asked if this risk is graded 
correctly. It is currently graded: likelihood 2, impact 3. If 
there was a successful ransomware attack this would be 
critical.  
EWY said there was a discussion during the risk training 
about ‘black swan risks’ and suggested cyber-attacks are 
covered in the ‘black swan’ follow up.   
MBE shared the name of a college who suffered a cyber-
attack and suggested contacting them.   
MBE suggested two risks, with the catastrophic risk set as 
an impact of 5.  
A&R committee members were happy with this approach. 
5. (P3 GC employee fails to comply with key procedures) 
MBJ asked if it was appropriate that the residual risk 
remains the same as the initial risk. The risk owner has 
been challenged about this and is happy with the risk rating.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA/EWY 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 8 of 14 

MBJ asked if this should be categorised as a regulatory risk 
rather than a HR risk. It sits with HR because they dealt 
with issues from previous role holders.  
SWA will follow up with JRA, the risk owner. 
 
7.2 & 7.3 The College Risk Register and New Build Risk 
Registers were noted by A&R committee members.  
 
7.4 KPI monitoring 
1. SWA said this is a new report and asked members if it 
provides them with useful information.  
2. AJO asked about the number of GDPR requests and said 
she would have assurance if it confirmed that they were 
dealt with within statutory deadlines and asked for the same 
logic to be applied elsewhere in the data and gave an 
example of Health & Safety data being recorded as 
compliant.  
AJO found the new report helpful.  
3. EWY asked that the owner provides further narrative and 
proposed actions where a KPI is not green.  
4. MBJ said the data is useful and likes how it ties the KPIs 
to the Risk Register.  
5. MBJ asked about setting a target for completion of health 
and safety training, currently it is 62% completed. The 
health and safety training has been introduced this year and 
is delivered by the Smartlog online system. CLT decided to 
issue all the training at the beginning of the year for staff to 
work through over the year. There will be a mop up exercise 
in the summer. Future roll outs will be distributed in stages. 
Staff have given feedback that they have felt overwhelmed 
with the training. 
CKN asked about staff being given time to complete the 
training – SWA said it is being built into CPD.  
SWA said future iterations of the KPI monitoring data will 
include the number of courses issued, percentage 
completed and the number outstanding.  
 
7.5 January college closure  
EWY said that GC was closed for a week in January 
because of snow.  
EWY feels that this was a major incident and wants A&R 
committee to understand what happened and if mitigations 
are now in place.  
SWA said that heavy snow fell at the weekend. The 
decision was made over the weekend to close college on 
Monday. Premises team came in on Monday to clear snow 
from the routes and paths detailed in the emergency plan. 
The depth of snow which had frozen meant there was too 
big a risk for 2750 students plus 200 staff to move round 
safely.  
CLT and volunteer staff helped clear the site on 
Wednesday, but the car park was frozen solid. Mechanical 
clearing could not be used in the car park because it would 
have pulled up the tarmac. A grounds maintenance 

 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 9 of 14 

company manually cleared the car park and this took five 
days.  
Safety issues caused the prolonged closure.  
During the closure online learning was delivered to 
students. 
There were some issues with staff being unable to use 
technology at home, a solution to this is being built into the 
digital strategy.  
SWA has made an agreement in good faith with the 
grounds maintenance company for them to clear the 
grounds before the snow freezes if this was to happen 
again.  
EWY asked about communications, he was unaware that 
the college was closed.  
SWA will discuss the emergency plan with MBR and who 
was contacted – governors are on the list of people to 
notify.  
MUS said that he saw a social media post from GC about 
the college closure.   
MBE asked if the Chair was informed – this is unknown.  
 
7.6 Risk Appetite Review Planning, previously circulated.  
A&R committee members oversee and agree the risk 
appetite annually.  
EWY has shared a paper from PGO which shows how this 
has been used with other clients to engage governor input. 
This can be completed by governors before the next A&R 
meeting or in a meeting.  
This will create data of how A&R members feel about where 
risk appetite should sit across the risk categories.  
EWY asked if members like the approach and feel it will add 
value. 
EWY asked if the risk appetites are right– GC uses ‘none to 
significant’, in PGO’s version the risks are ‘averse to 
seeking’. 
EWY asked if members are happy with the risk categories 
GC uses. The paper includes additional categories like 
business development which might help develop and 
expand the college. 
AJO welcomed further discussion either online or in a 
meeting, she prefers the terminology of risk averse to risk 
seeking and thinks the risk categories should be set by CLT 
and relate to the risk register, with test and challenge by 
governors.  
MBJ likes the framework, is relaxed about terminology if it is 
understood, and CLT should give rationale and narrative 
about where they see risk appetite, and then A&R members 
will give their opinions.  
EWY asked for a Risk Appetite MS form and EWY and 
SWA will discuss this further offline.  
EWY asked when risk appetite is due to come to A&R – the 
Clerk said in the June A&R meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
EWY/SWA 
 
Clerk for 
agenda 



Page 10 of 14 

 
8. Internal Audit 

 
Paul Goddard, from Scrutton Bland gave an update on the 
Internal Audit papers which were previously circulated.   
 
8.1 Business Continuity Audit  
1. This audit was given significant assurance.  
2. The report notes that CLT want to overhaul the business 
continuity process this year and introduce a new Business 
Continuity and Disaster Recovery Policy. 
3. PGO commented that the recent college closure due to 
snow was a real-life test of the business continuity plan, and 
said that a scenario test should also be planned in. 
4. The four low risk recommendations will help to keep 
business continuity high profile: 

• Nominated staff with media communication 
responsibilities should have media training  

• Monitoring and formalisation of the timeline for 
emergency planning  

• Improving the agenda for the Health and Safety 
committee  

• Scenario testing of the business continuity plan.  
5. EWY asked about the progress against the 
recommendations in the report – SWA confirmed that the 
changes have been implemented.  
A desk top scenario test has taken place; the next phase is 
to roll this out with training for staff.  
A live lockdown will probably be scheduled for September 
2025. EWY said this will make it a more representative test 
including the new A1 cohort, and the new hall.  
A fire evacuation test will happen this week. 
Perimeter lockdowns have happened during the year, and 
the systems and processes in place worked well. 
 
8.2 Estates Management 
1. This audit was given significant assurance. 
2. There is a robust framework in place with good process 
and transparency.  
3. This audit was almost given a strong assurance, but the 
limiting factor was that Smartlog has only recently been 
introduced (maintenance system) and training around 
Smartlog needs to be implemented.  
4. All the checks for statutory regulations were complete.   
5. There is one low risk recommendation that asks if 
granular level budget monitoring for estates (which is one of 
the biggest expenditures in the college) can be accessed in-
year.   
6. PGO said that GC benchmarks strongly against his other 
clients, 40% of Estates Management audits are either 
amber or red.  
7. SWA thanked CRO and LLI for their hard work and 
support with this audit. 
MBE commented that estates management has improved 
from two years ago.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 11 of 14 

EWY thanked SWA and her team for the phenomenal 
result. EWY will thank CRO and LLI personally.   
 
8.3 Cyber Audit –  
1. This is a verbal update, the field work was completed last 
week, and the audit is not finalised. 
2. There is an effective framework in place with findings in 
three core areas:  

• increasing completion rate of training  

• assurance regarding fire walls and documenting 
configuration settings and any changes 

• penetration testing  
3. ESFA set a mandatory requirement for cyber essentials 
by the year end. GC is working towards this annual 
reassessment, which keeps getting harder to achieve as the 
profile keeps being increased.   
4. PGO said the penetration tests need to be completed, 
the risk ratings given by specialist firms are often called 
business critical, when in reality they are often easily 
actioned.   
5. GC is working on a cyber essentials roadmap, and a Jisc 
portal has been purchased recently.   
6. There is work to do with Bring Your Own Devices 
(BYOD) and how this will be managed at GC.   
7. PGO said the report can be shared with governors when 
it’s finished in advance of the next meeting. EWY welcomed 
this as he feels this is one of the biggest risks that GC 
faces.  
EWY is reassured that the report will be green with 
recommendations to work on.  
 
8.4 Risk and Assurance Progress Report -   
1. This report is for governors to note.  
2. Budgetary control audit is May and the follow up of 
previous recommendations will be audited in June. 
3. EWY asked for an audit plan for the next academic year 
for A&R meeting on 16/6/25. PGO agreed and will bring a 
draft audit plan to the meeting. PGO will work on the draft 
plan with CLT and invited A&R committee members input. 
EWY asked A&R members to send him their ideas and he 
will liaise with CLT and internal audit. 
SWS asked if audits are undertaken on a certain frequency 
- the clerk will circulate this year’s audit plan which includes 
a draft plan for the next two years.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PGO 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A&R govs 
 
 
Clerk 

 
9. External Audit 

 
Nothing to present.  
 

 
 

 
10. Policies to 
review 

 
1. Data Protection Policy –  
A paragraph has been added about AI which reflects the AI 
position statement. 
A&R committee members approved the Data Protection 
Policy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 12 of 14 

 
2. Health & Safety Policy –  
The updates include: ‘training’ changed to ‘mandatory 
training’ and the lone worker guidelines have been 
removed, with this now held as a college procedure with a 
risk assessment. Using Smartlog, a risk handbook will be 
developed over the year, and this will be built into the 
policy.  
SWA said the policy sits within HSC expectations and 
guidance. 
A&R committee members approved the Health & Safety 
Policy.  
 
3. Risk Management Policy –  
The changes to this policy reflect the changes made around 
risk in the last twelve months. It sets expectations and 
contains clear information of how risk is managed.  
EWY has given input into the policy and feels it 
comprehensively captures the work undertaken around risk.   
A&R committee members approved the Risk Management 
Policy. 
 
 
4. Internet and Acceptable Use Policy –  
This is a new policy and reflects Data Protection and AI 
guidelines.  
It provides guidance to stakeholders on the use and 
expectations when using college IT and resources, 
engaging in online communications and social media.   
It is designed to protect stakeholders and gives GC the 
parameters to manage misuse. 
EWY asked CKN (staff governor) for a staff perspective of 
the policy, CKN said the policy neds communicating in 
depth to staff. 
CKN said the student agreement can be dealt with in 
tutorial when they start at GC. 
EWY asked about the process for stakeholders to sign the 
Acceptable Use agreement – SWA said a digital sign up will 
be used; probably with students via Cedar and staff via 
Smartlog.  
A&R committee members recommend approval of the 
new policy to the Corporation Board. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 

 
11. Legal, 
regulatory, sector 
updates 
 

 
EWY said this is an open item for contributors to brief the 
committee on any emerging audit and risk issues. 
 
MBE gave the following updates:  
1. A new framework for External Auditors is due to be 
released at the end of March; this will replace the Post 16 
Audit Code of Practice.  
This should come to A&R committee.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 



Page 13 of 14 

2. There has been an issue with college salaries - academy 
staff were awarded a higher salary than other college staff. 
In future the government is expected to be more equitable.  
3. MPs are currently reviewing Further Education which 
might trigger changes in the sector. 
EWY asked about the timeline of the review – MBE said the 
review started January 2025 and how long this will take is 
unknown.  
4. The Education Secretary will introduce a range of 
changes for academies; there will be a move to national 
curriculum and teachers must be qualified. Any colleges 
considering academisation need to keep abreast of these 
changes.  
 
PGO gave the following updates: 
5. For 2025/26, DfE will not honour full in-year funding 
(growth fund allocation) when student numbers increase. 
Clarity around this has not been provided yet.  
6. Failure to Prevent Fraud offence legislation starts in 
September 2025 and will affect all organisations.  
PGO suggested this could be considered for an audit of the 
college anti-fraud framework next AY.  
 
LME gave the following update: 
7. DfE funding will rise by 3.78%, this will cover the pay 
award. The funding allocation has not been confirmed yet. 
8. LME said she heard that the growth fund allocation is 
likely to be capped at two thirds, GC might not be in scope 
for this funding.   
9. The Pension Grant has been agreed for next AY. 
10. Capital funding has not been announced, and colleges 
are advised to wait for the spending review in June.  
EWY asked if CIF funding has been removed – CIF is 
currently protected. 
11. The distribution of National Insurance contributions 
funding will not be confirmed until May although the 
increased contributions start in April.  
 
SWA gave the following update: 
12. Workplace recycling legislation will come into effect on 
31/3/25, waste streams must be segregated. New waste 
contractors have been engaged to facilitate this.  
13. Martyn’s Law, a new terrorism bill, once fully approved 
will impact GC who will need to consider measures to 
improve security and preparedness against terrorism.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA/LME 

 
12. AoB 
 

 
EWY asked A&R members about Finance training and their 
availability from 4pm before the next A&R meeting on 
16/6/25.  
CLT members will also be invited to attend the training.  
A&R members agreed to start the training at 4pm. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 



Page 14 of 14 

Ewy thanked CKN whose term as staff governor is ending 
for his contribution to A&R. 

 
13. Confidentiality 
 

 
Catering discussion.  
Meeting without staff present. 

 
 

14. End of meeting 
review 

EWY asked if A&R members were comfortable with the 
level of assurance and if they wanted anything specific to 
be covered at the next A&R meeting. 
AJO felt it was worth spending the time discussing the 
important items on today’s agenda.  
SWA’s feedback was that the meeting was useful with 
appropriate challenge from members.  
A&R committee members were happy with the meeting and 
topics covered.   
 

 

 
15. Meeting of 
Auditors with 
Governors 
(without staff) 

 
LME, SWA and CKN left the meeting. 
The Clerk remained in the meeting. 
 
EWY said that this was an annual agenda item where A&R 
members and auditors have the opportunity for discussion 
without college staff present. 
EWY said it was good practice for a formal opportunity for 
the auditors to express any opinions or concerns. 
 
This discussion was confidential. 

 

 
16. Date next mtg 
 

 
Date of next meeting:  
Mon 16 June 2025 4.30pm at College,  
                               4pm, Finance training facilitated by  
                               Murray Smith 
 

 
All: note 
 

 
Minutes prepared by Sharon Roper (Clerk to the Corporation) on 13/5/25 
 
Approved & signed by, Ed Wynn, Chair of Audit & Risk Committee, dated 16/6/25  
 


